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31 March 2006 —ZEEXRF=ZR=+—H

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Tysan Holdings Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda.

The registered office of the Company is located at Clarendon House,
Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The principal place of
business of the Company is located at 6,/F, Sun Hung Kai Centre, 30
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal
activities:

e foundation piling

*  electrical and mechanical ("E&M") engineering and building
construction

*  machinery leasing and frading

®  properly investment and management

*  properly development

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ["HKFRSs") (which also
include Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs") and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for the
periodic remeasurement of investment properties and certain equity
investments, which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values are
rounded fo the nearest thousand ("HK$'000") except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of
the Company and ifs subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2006.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition,
being the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases. All significant
intercompany transactions and balances within the Group are eliminated
on consolidation.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside shareholders in the
results and net assets of the Company’s subsidiaries.
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FEAIREET 2B EBUBHRELE 2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
Alewg REPORTING STANDARDS

NTREEAEEINAFEHBR
RARKMNZHT REETBERME

The following new and revised HKFRSs affect the Group and are
adopted for the first time for the current year's financial statements:

WELER

ERAGTERE 1R HKAS 1

MHmEIER Presentation of Financial Statements
ERGTERFE 2R HKAS 2

TE Inventories

BERETERETR HKAS 7

Beamngx Cash Flow Statements
ERAGTERESH HKAS 8

SFEBR - Stz

Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

B RER
EBGTERE 105 HKAS 10
“EHRER Events affer the Balance Sheet Date
BERETERE 1R HKAS 11
BRESHD Construction Contracts
BERGERE 125 HKAS 12
PG Income Taxes
BEBGTERE 145 HKAS 14
DERE Segment Reporting
EBGTERE 165 HKAS 16
ME - EERRE Property, Plant and Equipment
BRI ERE17TH HKAS 17
HE leases
BEBGTERE 185 HKAS 18
Wz Revenue
BB ERE 195 HKAS 19
EERH Employee Benefits
FB g2 RI5E 2058 HKAS 20

BRI ez 8ihER Accounting for Government Grants and
BREB 2 BE Disclosure of Government Assistance

BRETERE2R HKAS 21

INEEXEH R E The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

BEEERE23%R HKAS 23

ER DR Borrowing Costs

BERSTERF 245 HKAS 24

FRAEALRE Related Party Disclosures

BRETERE2R HKAS 27

e kB B®RE Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

BEEFERE 285 HKAS 28

REERRZRE Investments in Associates

BREERE25 HKAS 32

TRIE: KERZH

Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation

2005/2006 Annual Report
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2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont'd)

HKAS 33

Eamings per Share

HKAS 36

Impairment of Assets

HKAS 37

Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent Assets

HKAS 38

Intangible Assets

HKAS 39

Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

HKAS 39 Amendment

Transition and Initial Recognition of Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

HKAS 40

Investment Property

HKFRS 2

Share-based Payment

HKFRS 3

Business Combinations

HKFRS 5

Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations

HK(SIC)-Int 21
Income Taxes — Recovery of Revalued Non-depreciable Assets

HK-Int 4
leases — Defermination of the Length of Lease Term in respect of Hong
Kong Land leases

The adoption of HKASs 2, 7, 8,10, 11,12, 14,16, 18,19, 20, 21,
23,27,28,33,36, 37,38, HKFRSs 2, 5 and HK-Int 4 has had no
material impact on the accounting policies of the Group and the
Company and the methods of computation in the Group's and the
Company's financial statements.

HKAS 1 has affected the presentation of minority interests on the face of
the consolidated balance sheet, consolidated income statement,
consolidated stafement of changes in equity and other disclosures.

HKAS 24 has expanded the definition of related parties and affected the
Group's related party disclosures.
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FEAIREET 2B EBUBHRELE 2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL

Bleg (&) REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont'd)

RmEm B BN BRELEN 2 EM The impact of adopting the other HKFRSs is summarised as follows:
T

(a) BEEIEREI7H -HE (a) HKAS 17 - leases

RBEFEE BRAEELHRE
FRIZKAR R E R IR
EEREIE -

ERMBL ST ENFITRE -
AEENTREF 2 HE#ER
BoRFAHELRET - A
RIBHHBERE L2 FrE#
TeEBIAKE ~EEZHE
ELelARERN  YD8R
REBNLMEET  MEFH
NRYME BERRBZ
N RERNBA T RN L
MERNTRRAINE - HRR
MEAREREEHRE - EHE
NRAAR L RBFE D 2 [
A S B - BIEIREE MK
AAALHEBFZRARN - R
ME  BERREZBEED -

HWEREHRRZEDHEARR
KRBRFABERLERZE - BEZ
TTRF=A=+—HIEFEZ
HBAFREGAEERARBRT
By URMBEEL 2 EH A

In prior years, leasehold land and buildings held for own use were
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses.

Upon the adoption of HKAS 17, the Group's leasehold interest in
land and buildings is separated into leasehold land and buildings.
The Group's leasehold land is classified as an operating lease,
because the fifle of the land is not expected to pass to the Group by
the end of the lease term, and is classified as to prepaid land lease
payments, while buildings are classified as part of property, plant
and equipment. Prepaid land lease payments under operating
leases are initially stated af cost and subsequently amortised on the
straight-line basis over the lease term. When the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and buildings
elements, the entire lease payments are included in the cost of the
land and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and
equipment.

This change in accounting policy has had no effect on the
consolidated income statement and accumulated losses. The
comparative amounts for the year ended 31 March 2005 in the
consolidated balance sheet have been restated to reflect the
reclassification of the leasehold land.

2005/2006 Annual Report
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2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont'd)

(b) HKAS 32 and HKAS 39 — Financial Instruments

(i)

Equity securities

In prior years, the Group classified its investments in equity
securifies for frading purposes as short ferm investments, and
were stated at their fair values on an individual basis with
gains and losses recognised in the income statement. Upon
the adoption of HKAS 39, these securities held by the Group

1 April 2005 in the amount of HK$432,000 are
designated as financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss under the transitional provisions of HKAS 39 and
accordingly are stated at fair value with gains or losses being
recognised in the income sfatement.

The adoption of HKAS 39 has not resulted in any change in
the measurement of these equity securities.

Bank borrowings

Upon the adoption of HKAS 39, the bank borrowings are
recognised inifially at fair value less affributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to the initial recognition, the bank
borrowings are stated at amortised cost. This change in
accounting policy has been accounted for by restating the
bank borrowings by way of an opening adjustment to the
accumulated losses and bank borrowings as at 1 April 2005.

The effects of the above changes are summarised in note 2.4
o the financial statements.
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2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont'd)

(c)

(d)

HKAS 40 - Investment Property

In prior years, changes in the fair values of investment properties
were dealf with as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If the
fotal of this reserve was insufficient to cover a deficit, on a portfolio
basis, the excess of the deficit was charged to the income
stafement. Any subsequent revaluation surplus was credited fo the
income stafement fo the extent of the deficit previously charged.

Upon the adoption of HKAS 40, gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair values of investment properties are included in
the income statement in the year in which they arise. As at 31
March 2005, the Group's investment properties had a net deficit of
HK$7.8 million on a portfolio basis. As a result of the adoption of
HKAS 40, the Group's profit before tax increased by HK$52.4
million for the year ended 31 March 2006. In addition, due fo the
adoption of HK[SIC}-Int 2 1{as mentioned below), deferred tax
charge increased by HK$20.9 million for the year ended 31
March 2006.

HKFRS 3 - Business Combinations

In prior years, goodwill and negative goodwill arising on
acquisitions was capitalised and amortised on the straight-line
basis over its estimated useful life and was subject to impairment
testing when there was any indication of impairment. Negative
goodwill was carried in the consolidated balance sheet and was
recognised in the consolidated income stafement on a systematic
basis over the remaining average useful life of the acquired
depreciable/amortisable assets.

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 3, any excess of the Group's interest
in the net fair value of the acquirees’ identifiable asses, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition of subsidiaries
(previously referred to as negative goodwill), after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in the consolidated income statement.

2005/2006 Annual Report
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2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont'd)

(d] HKFRS 3 - Business Combinations (Cont'd)

(e)

The transitional provisions of HKFRS 3 have required the Group fo
eliminate af 1 April 2005 the carrying amounts of accumulated
amortisation with a corresponding adjustment to the cost of
goodwill and to derecognise at 1 April 2005 the carrying amounts
of negative goodwill against retained profits.

As the Group's goodwill has been fully amortised/impaired as ot
31 March 2005, the adoption of HKFRS 3 does not have any
impact on goodwill. The effects of the change to negative goodwill
are summarised in note 2.4 to the financial statements. In
accordance with the transitional provisions of HKFRS 3,
comparative amounts have not been restated.

HK{(SIC)-Int 21 - Income Taxes — Recovery of Revalued
Non-depreciable Assets

In prior years, deferred tax arising on the revaluation of investment
properties was recognised based on the tax rate that would be
applicable upon the sale of the invesiment properties.

Upon the adoption of HK(SIC)-Int 21, which removes the
presumption that the carrying amount of investment properties is fo
be recovered through sale, deferred tax arising on the revaluation
of the Group's invesiment properties is determined on the basis that
reflect the tax consequences that would follow from the recovery of
the properties through use. Accordingly, the profits tax rate has
been applied fo the calculation of deferred tax.

The effects of the above changes are summarised in note 2.4 fo the
financial statements. The change has been adopted retrospectively
from the earliest period presented and comparative amounts have
been restated.
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2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.
Unless otherwise stated, these HKFRSs are effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2006:

HKAS 1 Amendment

Capifal Disclosures

HKAS 39 Amendment

The Fair Value Option

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 4 Amendments

Financial Guarantee Contracts

HKFRS 7
Financial Instruments: Disclosures
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4

Determining whether an Arrangement contains a lease

HK(IFRIC)-Int 8
Scope of HKFRS 2

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9

Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

The HKAS 1 Amendment shall be applied for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2007 . The revised standard will affect the
disclosures about qualitative information about the Group's objective,
policies and processes for managing capital; quantitative data about
what the Company regards as capital; and compliance with any capital
requirements and the consequences of any noncompliance.

HKFRS 7 requires disclosures relating to financial instruments and
incorporates many of the disclosure requirements of HKAS 32. This
HKFRS shall be applied for accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2007.

2005/2006 Annual Report
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2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont'd)

In accordance with the amendments to HKAS 39 and HKFRS 4
regarding financial guarantee contracts, financial guarantee contracts
are initially recognised at fair value and are subsequently measured at
the higher of (i) the amount determined in accordance with HKAS 37 and
(ii) the amount initially recognised, less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised in accordance with HKAS 18.

HK(IFRIC}Hnt 4, HK(IFRICHnt 8 and HK(IFRIC}-Int 9 shall be applied for
accounting periods beginning on or affer 1 January 2006, 1 May 2006
and 1 June 2006, respectively.

Except as stated above, the Group expects that the adoption of the
pronouncements listed above will not have any significant impact on the
Group's financial statements in the period of initial application.
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24 SRS 2EERE 2.4 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) G EEEBBRZTE (a) Effect on the consolidated balance sheets
R-ZZETHEFWMA—H At 1 April 2005

ROUTETRR 2R
Effect of adopting

BB (RH

Ehgs BRes FRUBRE REBZE9)
RAFHS  RRIERT  EHEIN -REENRH
HKAS 174 HKAS 39 HKFRS 3*  HK(SIC)-Int 21#

MHRzEE Effect of new policies EffRENR
RiTEEZ TBRA  EEHE
Bttt RS £ B®%  Deferred tax on
HEF  Amortisationof  Derecognition revaluation
Prepaidlond  costofbank  ofnegafive  of investment Eh)
lease payments  borrowings goodwil properties Total
TEL TEL TEL TEL TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assels
nE - BER Decrease in property,
RERD plant and equipment (1,509 — - — (1,509
k] Increase in prepaid lond
HEEM lease payments 1,473 - — — 1473
AEERY Decrease in negative goodwill - — 3,601 20,649 24,340
IR Increase in other receivables,
BRRER prepayments and
mEEm deposits 36 - — - 36
24,340
B/ Liabilies /equity
ft B8R Decrease in inferestbearing
EERD bank borrowings — (2,491 — — (2,491
ERHBEREEN  Increase in deferred fox liabilifies — — — 237 438 237 438
DEREERRD  Decrease in minority inferests — — — (119,245) (119,245)
2 EE Decrease/(increase) in accumulated
WD/ () losses - 2,491 3,691 197,544 191,362
24,340
2005/2006 Annual Report
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BRERBAGEM
PERREDR D
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(42 1m)
EX SRR

Effect of new policies

Assels

Decrease in property,
plant and equipment
Increase in prepoid lond
lease payments
Decreose in negative goodwil
Increase in other receivables,
prepayments and
deposis

Liabilifies/equity
Decrease in inferest-bearing
bank borrowings

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

A 5 4t e R
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 March 2006 —EZXRF=A=+—8H

(a) Effect on the consolidated balance sheets (Cont'd)

At 31 March 2006

Increase in deferred fox liabilities —

Decrease in minority inferests
Decrease/increase] in
accumulated losses

Decrease in exchange fluctuati

RN TEARRZEE
Effect of adopting

EE (5%

ERei EREH FBREVEHRE RBZE9)
RAZE 7R RAIE0H  EHER -BBENTH
HKAS 17# HKAS 39* HKFRS 3*  HK(SIC)-Int 214
EffRENE

BiTREL TBER  ZEEHRE

B Lt RS 5 BHE  Deferredtoxon
FER  Amorfisationof  Derecognifion revaluation
Prepaidland ~ cost of bank of negative  of investment
lease payments ~ borrowings goodwil properties
TET TEL TETL TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
[1473) - - -
1,437 - - -

- - 3115 17,431

% - - -

- (1,781) - -

— — 263,989
— - — (132,631
— 1,781 3,115 11,121)
on reserve — — — (2,806]

Adjustments taken prospectively from 1 April 2005

BE-ZTAFMA-BAREACHAE

BBz AR 2R

2005/2006 F#H

BAEMERAERAA

Adjustments/presentation taken effect refrospectively

@it
Total
FET
HK$'000

(1,473)

1,437
20,546

36

20,546

(1,781
263,989
[132,631]

(106,225]
2,800

20,546
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24 Bt HREH2TERE (&) 2.4 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(b) H—ZFZEMFMA—-—AR=F (b) Effect on the balances of equity at 1 April 2004 and at
FOFOA-—AZBREFZ 1 April 2005
2

RMUTEARR 22

Effect of adopting

B (RH2E

BEgr BHBUBHRE Z8%9)

ERIE39%  EAEIE -REENT

HKAS 39 HKFRS 3 HK(SIC)-Int 21

FBR2EE Effect of new policies EfRENFE

RITEEZ BRI ZEERRE

DS & B#E Deferred taxon

Amortisation of  Derecognition revaluation
cost of bank of negative  of investment st
borrowings goodwill properties Total
TET TET TET TET

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R_ZEMEMA—H At T April 2004

RETEBEM Increase in accumulated losses — — (87.615) (87,615)
’J D ER R R Decrease in minority inferests — — (115,504) (115,504)
(203,119)

R-BZRFMA—B Al Aprl 2005

2:EBRRY Decrease/(increase) in
(&) accumulated losses 2,491 3,691 (07 544) (91,362)
LEREERR D Decrease in minority interests — — (119,245) (119,245)
(210,607
2005/2006 Annual Report
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24 SR RREHHLEMRE (£) 2.4 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(c) HBE_EEXFR-_ZEZFH (c] Effect on the consolidated income statements for the years
F=A=+—HULFEHERE ended 31 March 2006 and 2005
wmEkZTE
BEZ-ZTHEF Year ended 31 March 2005
ZA=T-HLERE
RawEB (EBRBEES) -
n%*%gﬁ-Z'lﬁﬁ ‘?~/ E
Effect of adopting
HK(SIC)-Int 21
MR F 8 Effect of new policies EMREMEZELERE

Deferred tax on
revaluation of investment

properties

FET

HK$'000

H M A R B F Decrease in other income and gains (3,218)

TR IEE 0 Increase in tax (10,452)
DR RER D Decrease in minority inferests 3,741

BB nBEE Total increase in loss (9,929)

SRREXREEEM (B  Increase in basic loss per share (1.3 cents)
SREEEEEM GBI  Increase in diluted loss per share REA N/A

2005/2006 F#H
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24 Bt HREH2TERE (&) 2.4 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(c) $IBZE_—_TERNFR_-_ZFZLR (c] Effect on the consolidated income statements for the years
F=F=+—HIFEHEE ended 31 March 2006 and 2005 (Cont'd)
w2 E (B)
BE-ZTTRF Year ended 31 March 2006
ZA=t-HLHFE
FUATEHARz 22
Effect of adopting
Bk (RHRE

ERET FREUBES Ehg %Z5%)
HERISE39%; RREE  RHER -REENR
HKAS 39 HKFRS 3 HKAS 40 HK(SIC)-Int 21

FBEz¥E  Effectof new policies EtRENE ERRENE
BiTEE TBER 2B ZEEHE
PRS- £ aHg Surpluson  Deferred tax on
Amortisation of  Derecognition revaluation revaluation
cost of bank ofnegative  ofinvestment o investment @t
borrowings goodwill properties properties Total

TET TET TET TET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RENZZ Increase in changes in

NTE fair value of

""""" EEEN investment properties — - 52,386 - 52,386
ElAR Decrease in other

BHE income and gains — (576) — 3,218) (3,794)
Bt A Decrease in other expenses 460 - — - 460
BERALM  Increase in finance costs (1,170) - — — (1,170
REEm Increase in tax — — — (20,870 (20,870)
DEREER  Decrease/(increase] in minority

R/ (Em) interests — — (26,488 10,511 (15,977]
B/ Total increase/|decrease) in

() ez profit (710] (576) 25,898 (13,577 11,035

BREREF  Increase/|decrease) in
i/ (84)  basic earnings
(7l per share (0.1 cent] (0.1 cent] 3.4 cenfs (1.8 cents) 1.4 cents

BREERHN  Increase/(decrease) in
i,/ (R)  divted eamings per share
(L) (0.1 cent) (0.1 cent) 3.3 cents (1.7 cents) 1 4cents
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1 March 2006 —EZXRF=A=+—8H

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies the
Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain benefits from its
activities.

The results of the subsidiaries are included in the Company’s income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company's inferests in subsidiaries are sfated at cost less any impairment
losses.

Associates

An associate is an enfity, not being a subsidiary, in which the Group has
a long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position fo exercise significant influence.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of
associates is included in the income statement and consolidated
reserves, respectively. The Group's inferesfs in associates are sfated in the
consolidated balance sheet at the Group’s share of net assets under the
equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

[a]  the party, directly or indirectly through one or more infermediaries,
(i) controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, the
Group; (i) has an interest in the Group that gives it significant
influence over the Group; or (iii] has joint control over the Group;

(b) the party is an associate;
(c] the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

(d) the party is a member of the key management personnel of the

Group;

(e} the party is a close member of the family of any individual referred
to in (a) or (d);

2005/2006 &
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Related parties (Cont'd)

(fl  the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by or for which significant voting power in
such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual referred
toin [d) or [e): or

(g) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of the Group, or of any entity that is a related party of
the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
aftributable costs of bringing the assets to its working condition and
location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after items of property,
plant and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the income statement in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated
that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future economic
benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of property,
plant and equipment and the cost of the ifem can be measured reliably,
the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that asset or as a
replacement.

Depreciation is calculated on the straightine basis to write off the cost of
each item of property, plant and equipment fo ifs residual value over ifs
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are

as follows:

leasehold land Over the terms of the leases
Buildings 2.5%
10%-33":%

Equipment and machinery

Furniture and fixtures 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Motor yacht 10%

10% - 33'/3%

leasehold improvements

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.

2005/2006 Annual Report
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (Cont'd)

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the
income sfatement in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the nef sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held to eam
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes;
or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties are
measured inifially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent fo
inifial recognition, investment properties are stated af fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the balance sheet dafe.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the income statement in the year in which they

arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the income statement in the year of the
retirement or disposal.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at cost less any impairment
losses, which includes all development expenditure, borrowing costs and
other costs directly affributable to such properties.

Properties under development which have either been pre-sold or which
are intended for sale and are expected to be completed within one year
from the balance sheet date are classified as current assets.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated in the balance sheet at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost includes the cost of land, interest
capitalised during the period of development and other direct costs
attributable to the development of the properties. Net realisable value is
defermined by reference to the prevailing market prices on an individual
property basis, less all costs to completion, if applicable, and costs of
marketing and selling.

Impairment of assets

When an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required [other than inventories, construction
contract assets, financial assets, investment properties), the asset's
recoverable amount is calculated as the higher of the asset's value in use
and its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assefs or groups of assets, in which
case, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
fo which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted fo their present value using a pretax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
fo the income statement in the period in which it arises.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as fo whether there is any
indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable
amount is esfimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of an asset, however
not o an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been
defermined [net of any depreciation/amortisation], had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is credited fo the income sfatement in the period in which
it arises.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Investments and other financial assets

Applicable to the year ended 31 March 2005:

The Group classified its investments, other than subsidiaries and
associates, as other assets and short term investments.

Other assets

Other assets represent unlisted club debentures and memberships, which
are intended to be held for long term purposes, and are stated at cost
less any impairment losses.

Short term investments

Short term investments are investments in equity securities held for trading
purposes and are sftated af their fair values on the basis of their quoted
market prices at the balance sheet date, on an individual investment
basis. The gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of a
security are credited or charged fo the income sfatement in the period in
which they arise.

Applicable to the year ended 31 March 2006:

Financial assets in the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as either
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss or loans and
receivables, as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments
not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction
costs. The Group defermines the classification of its financial assets after
initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this
designation at the balance sheet date.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the frade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assefs that require delivery of assets within the period generally

established by regulation or convention in the markefplace.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Investments and other financial assets (Cont'd)
Applicable to the year ended 31 March 2006: (Cont'd)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets classified as held for trading are included in the
category "financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of sale in the near term. Gains or losses on investments held for
frading are recognised in the income statement.

loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Such
assefs are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when the loans
and receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the
amortisation process.

Fair valve

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in organised
financial markets is determined by reference to quoted market bid prices
at the close of business at the balance sheet date. For investments where
there is no active market, fair value is determined using valuation
techniques. Such techniques include using recent arm’s length market
transactions; reference to the current market value of another instrument
which is substantially the same; a discounted cash flow analysis; and
option pricing models.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets

Applicable to the year ended 31 March 2006:

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and
receivables carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset's original effective inferest rate (i.e., the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced either directly or through the use of an allowance account. The

amount of the impairment loss is recognised in the income statement.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists
individually for financial assets that are individually significant, and
individually or collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If it is determined that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or
not, the asset is included in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and that group is collectively assessed for impairment.
Assefs that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively o an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised in the income stafement, fo the extent that the carrying value
of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

All borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the
consideration received less directly affributable fransaction cosfs.

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Gains and losses are recognised in net profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the amortisation process.

leased assets

leases that fransfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets fo the Group, other than legal title, are accounted for as finance
leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is
capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease payments and
recorded together with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to
reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases are included in property, plant and equipment and depreciated
over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such
leases are charged fo the income statement so as to provide a constant
periodic rafe of charge over the lease terms.

leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assefs and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to the income statement on the
straightline basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee,
renfals payable under the operating leases are charged fo the income
statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms -

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated af
cost and subsequently recognised on the straightline basis over the lease
term. When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included
in the cost of the land and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant
and equipment.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, on the first-in, first-out basis,
and net realisable value after making due allowance for any obsolete or
slow-moving items. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less all estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Construction contracts

Contract revenue comprises the agreed contract amount and
appropriate amounts from variation orders, claims and incentive
payments. Contract costs incurred comprise direct materials, the costs of
subcontracting, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable
and fixed consfruction overheads.

Revenue from fixed price construction contracts is recognised on the
percentage of completion method, measured by reference to the
proportion of costs incurred to date to the estimated total cost of the

relevant contract.

Revenue from cost plus construction contracts is recognised on the
percentage of completion method, by reference to the recoverable costs
incurred during the period plus the related fees earned, measured by the
proportion of costs incurred to date to the estimated total cost of the

relevant contract.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are anticipated
by management.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is treated as an
amount due from contract customers.

Where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus
recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is treated as an
amount due fo contract customers.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly atfributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e., assefs that necessarily take a
substantial period of fime to get ready for their infended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is
the Company's functional and presentation currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency fransactions are initially recorded using the
functional currency rates ruling at the date of the fransactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are refranslated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling af the balance sheet
date. All differences are taken fo the income statement. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
fransactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was defermined.

The functional currencies of cerfain overseas subsidiaries are currencies
other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the balance sheet date, the assets
and liabilities of these entities are translated into the presentation
currency of the Company at the exchange rates ruling af the balance
sheet date and, their income statements are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The
resulting exchange differences are included in a separate component of
equity as exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign entfity,
the deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to that

particular foreign operation is recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, the cash flows
of overseas subsidiaries are translated info Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars af the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income fax is recognised
in the income statement, or in equity if it relates to items that are
recognised in the same or a different period directly in equity.

Current fax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected fo be recovered from or paid fo the
faxation authorities.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

* in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and interests in associates, except where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Income tax (Cont'd)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax credit and unused tax losses, to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax assefs and unused fax losses can be utilised
except:

e where the deferred tax asset relating fo the deductible temporary
differences arises from the inifial recognition of an asset or liability
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor faxable profit or loss; and

* inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and inferests in associates, deferred tax
assets are only recognised fo the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred fax assets is reviewed af each balance
sheet date and reduced fo the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset fo be utilised. Conversely, previously unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date and are
recognised fo the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset fo be ufilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured af the tax rates that are
expected o apply fo the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is setfled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheef date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current fax
liobilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same faxation authority.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Employee benefits

Share-based payment fransactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
fo the success of the Group's operations. Employees (including directors)
of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment
fransactions, whereby employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments (“equity-setiled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by
reference fo the fair value af the date af which they are granted. The fair
value is determined by an external valuer using a binomial model. In
valuing equity-seftled transactions, no account is taken of any
performance conditions, other than conditions linked fo the price of the
shares of the Company (“market conditions”), if applicable.

The cost of equity-setiled transactions is recognised, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date
on which the relevant employees become fully entitled to the award (the
"vesting date”). The cumulative expense recognised for equity-setiled
fransactions at each balance sheet date until the vesting date reflects the
extent fo which the vesting period has expired and the Group's best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ulimately vest. The
charge or credit o the income statement for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as atf the beginning and
end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except
for awards where vesting is conditional upon a market condition, which
are freafed as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market condition
is satisfied, provided that all other performance conditions are safisfied.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Employee benefits (Cont'd)

Share-based payment fransactions (Cont'd)

Where the terms of an equity-setiled award are modified, as a minimum
an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been modified. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification, which
increases the fotal fair value of the share-based payment arrangement, or
is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-seftled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised
for the award is recognised immediately. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement
award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are
freated as if they were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share
dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of HKFRS 2 in respect
of equity-setiled awards and has applied HKFRS 2 only to equity-setiled
awards granted after 7 November 2002 that had not vested on 1 April
2005 and to those granted on or after 1 April 2005.

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under their
employment contfracts on a calendar year basis. Under certain
circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as at the balance sheet
date is permitted to be carried forward and utilised by the respective
employees in the following year. An accrual is made at the balance sheet
date for the expected future cost of such paid leave earned during the
year by the employees and carried forward.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Employee benefits (Cont'd)

Employment Ordinance long service payments

Certain of the Group's employees have completed the required number
of years of service fo the Group in order fo be eligible for long service
payments under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance in the event of
the termination of their employment. The Group is liable to make such
payments in the event that such a termination of employment meets the
circumstances specified in the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.

A contingent liability is disclosed in respect of possible future long service
payments to employees, as a number of current employees have
achieved the required number of years of service to the Group, to the
balance sheet date, in order to be eligible for long service payments
under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance if their employment is
terminated in the circumstances specified. A provision has not been
recognised in respect of such possible payments, as it is not considered
probable that the situation will result in a material future outflow of
resources from the Group.

Pension schemes

The Group operated a defined contribution provident fund (the “Fund”)
for certain of its employees in Hong Kong, the assets of which are held
separately from those of the Group and are managed by an independent
professional fund manager. Contributions under the Fund were made
based on a percentage of the eligible employees’ basic salaries and
were charged fo the income statement as they became payable in
accordance with the rules of the scheme. The ongoing contributions to
the Fund were terminated on 1 April 1999.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Employee benefits (Cont'd)

Pension schemes (Cont'd)

Following the infroduction of the Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefits scheme [the "MPF Scheme”), the Group has restructured its
refirement scheme arrangements to comply with the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The Group has secured a Mandatory
Provident Fund exemption status for the above refirement benefits scheme
and, in addition, has participated in an approved defined contribution
MPF Scheme with effect from 1 December 2001, for all of its employees
in Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged fo the income statement as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group's employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when confributed info the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries located in Mainland China
are required fo participate in a central pension scheme operated by the
local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute
a cerfain percentage of their covered payroll to the central pension
scheme. The contributions are charged fo the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably, on
the following bases:

(a)  From foundation piling, E&M engineering and building construction
confracts

On the percentage of completion basis, as further explained in the
accounting policy for “Consfruction contracts” above;

(b)  From the sale of properties held for sale

On the exchange of legally binding sales contracts;
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Revenue recognition (Cont'd)
[c)  From machinery trading

When the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
fransferred to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement fo the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the machines sold;

(d)  Rental income from property and machinery leasing

In the period in which the properties and machines are leased and
on the straightline basis over the lease terms;

(e}  From the rendering of property management services
In the period in which such services are rendered;
[f)  Interest income

On an accrual basis using the effective interest method by applying
the rate that discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument fo the net carrying amount
of the financial asset: and

(gl Dividend income

When the shareholders’ right to receive payment has been
established.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and short
term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible info known
amounts of cash and which are subject o an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and bank balances comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits, which are not
restricted as fo use.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that
a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the balance sheet date of the future
expenditures expected to be required fo seftle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the income statement.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management
makes various judgements and estimates based on past experience,
expectations of the future and other information. The key sources of
estimation uncertainty that can significantly affect the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements are disclosed below:

Provision for impairment of trade receivables

The policy for provision for impairment of frade receivables of the Group
is based on the evaluation of collectibility and aging analysis of accounts
and on management's judgement. A considerable amount of judgement
is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables,
including the current creditworthiness and the past collection history of
each customer. If the financial conditions of customers of the Group are to
deferiorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments,
additional provision may be required.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Cont'd)

Percentage of completion of construction works

The Group recognises the revenue according to the percentage of
completion of the individual contract of construction works. The Group's
management estimates the percentage of completion of construction
works if the value of works has not been certified by the customers af the
balance sheet date. These estimates are based on actual cost incurred
over the fofal budgeted cost. Corresponding confract revenue is also
estimated by management. Because of the nature of the activity
undertaken in construction contracts, the date at which the contract
acfivity is entered into and the dafe when the activity is completed usually
fall into different accounting periods. The Group reviews and revises the
estimates of both contract revenue and contract costs in the budget
prepared for each construction confract as the contract progresses.

Current tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in a number of jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the amount of the
provision for tax and the timing of payment of the related taxes. There are
many fransactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
defermination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will have an impact on the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
defermination is made.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information is presented by way of two segment formats: (i} on
a primary segment reporting basis, by business segment; and (i) on a
secondary segment reporting basis, by geographical segment.

The Group's operating businesses are structured and managed
separately, according fo the nature of their operations and the products
and services they provide. Each of the Group's business segments
represents a strategic business unit that offers products and services
which are subject fo risks and returns that are different from those of the
other business segments. Summary details of the business segments are
as follows:

(a)  the foundation piling segment;

(b)  the E&M engineering and building construction segment;
[c)  the machinery leasing and frading segment;

(d]  the property invesiment and management segment; and
[e)  the property development segment.

In determining the Group's geographical segments, revenues are
attributed to the segments based on the location of the customers, and
assefs are atfributed fo the segments based on the location of the asses.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the
selling prices used for sales made fo third parties at the then prevailing
market prices.
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DEEH (&) 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)
(b) it E 7 (b) Geographical segments
TRENAEBHE_TTRHF The following table presents revenue and certain assets and
F_ZERF=A=1t—HILHF expenditure information for the Group's geographical segments for
B R B RERETE the years ended 31 March 2006 and 2005.
ERRAX &R -
£H GROUP
BB TRAMEE B2 )
Hong Kong Elsewhere in the PRC Unallocated Consolidated
CEINF CTERE CETNF CFRRF CRENEF CETRF CEENF CTTRA
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Tér  T#x  FEx  T#x  TEx  T#x  FEr T#x
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
(FEJ)) (FEJ)) (FEJ))
[Restated] [Restated] [Restated]
AENE - Segment revente:

HETINERE  Sclestoexterncl customers 788,553 571,087 292181 104758 - 1080734 675,845

EAEER:  Othersegment informafion:
PREE Segment assets 439982 451,669 1781763 1,372,591 64,644 43562 2,286,389 1806/,822
m% #&R  Copiolexpenditurein
XEZERRX  respect of properl,
plant ond equipment 25297 23476 3,874 3,031 1,167 539 30338 27,046

2005/2006 F#H
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Wi~ HAbWA R &R

Woak (MEVAGRE 2 25X8) fHhBY
BEMB TR EMERE 2 METE
EREREETRANEE: EEH
R RMEREEMBRA  HHEDER
BEMSHEHEKA  HERFFHEE
ZMEZWARHEEEARRRE 1)

BARHEZHBHE -

AEEzWE  BERARBNZD

T

s
AT i
BERRETR

WEHENER
MEREREE
MEER

Hitp AR BF -
FEHA
RBRRE
HE—RRENE AN

HEVE  BaER
REBBEEZBF
BAFEARS
ZBRE /R E
AN Y )
FRRERS
BAZEEE
REFEETHEAT
2 A1 73 it Rl
BREERMK
R B M FER
Hit

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents the aggregate of

the value of foundation piling, E&M engineering and building

construction contracts certified by independent architects or quantity

surveyors; income derived from machinery trading and property

management; rental income from property and machinery leasing; and

income from the sale of properties held for sale, after eliminations of all

significant intragroup transactions.

An analysis of the Group's revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

Revenue:

Foundation piling
E&M engineering and

building construction
Machinery leasing and trading
Property investment and management
Property development

Other income and gains:

Inferest income

Insurance claims

Gain on disposal of
an investment property

Gain on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment

Changes in fair value of equity
investments at fair value through
profit or loss/short term investments

Negative goodwill recognised as
income during the year

Tox refund in respect of reinvestment of
distributable profits from certain
subsidiaries in the PRC

Foreign exchange gains, net

Others

2005/2006 Annual Report
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—EERE “TTRHF
2006 2005
FET F#ET
HK$’000 HK$'000
(FEE)

[Restated)

792,770 429,086
172,003 125,690
20,162 15,427
95,799 95,363
— 10,279
1,080,734 675,845
1,586 750
275 1,152

— 105
6,908 3,174
— 208

— 576

171 5,475

788 —
1,571 4,598
11,299 16,038
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6. FINANCE COSTS

£E
GROUP
—EETRE —TTRF
2006 2005
FET T#T
HK$’000 HK$'000
Interest on:
Bank borrowings and overdrafts wholly
repayable within five years 29,153 10,085
Finance leases 2 126
Tofal interest 29,155 10,211
less: Inferest capitalised in
properties under
development (nofe 16) (8,809) (2,964)
20,346 7,247

2005/2006 F#H
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BR%E Bz A

AEBZBRBATEMENR, GEA)

THISREER

AEEmBHE
e
BN LEERZ #H

T REFEERD
Z BB AR
BERB HES

LHAME
NEFRE
LEERETR/

(Z AR

EBERAIH

(BREEEME - H:8)

I&R%2
RIKNE B

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

ft i
Notes
Goodwill amortisation for the year* 19
Depreciation 13
Amortisation of prepaid land
lease payments 15

Minimum lease payments under
operating leases of land and buildings
Rental of construction equipment

Audifors' remuneration:
Provision for the year
Underprovision/overprovision
in the prior year

Employee benefits expense:
(including directors’ remuneration = note 8):
Wages and salaries
Pension scheme contributions

2005/2006 Annual Report
TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

ZERE —ETRF
2006 2005
FET FAET
HK$000 HK$'000
(45 )

[Restated)

— 87
45,156 57,287
36 36
9,879 9,224
13,775 10,896
1,623 1,285
99 (191)
1,722 1,094
133,716 112,031
4,560 4,043
138,276 116,074
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BRELAE R (&) 7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Cont'd)

AEEZBRBAEMENR, GEA)
THISREER

The Group's profit before tax is arrived af after charging/(crediting):

—ETX “EZThF

2006 2005

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$'000

(K Y)

[Restated)

INESER R (BF) S8 Foreign exchange losses/(gains), net* (788) 184
JEWE 5RO ER R Provision for impairment of frade receivables* 142 2,063

W/WTE?: I FE" Write-down of inventories to

net realisable value* 172 1,851
HE—TBREYE loss/[gain] on disposal of
&8/ (BF)

BATEHARE

an investment property * 109 (105])
Changes in fair value of equity investments

ZRNEE EH at fair value through profit or

REZAFEZE* loss/short term investments* 60 (208)
H & B RE Impairment on other assefs* 459 —
—HBERRZ Provision for impairment of

REBERE* an amount due from an associate* 234 —
HERLEHO 2 Rental income from

Ha kA operating leases of machinery (6,002) (5,584)
REMEZ Gross rental income from

Hel A BzE investment properties (93,861) (93,890)
R X less: Outgoings 21,806 19,986
REMEZHEBMAFH Net rental income from investment properties (72,055) (73,904)
EAREZRERA Dividend income from listed investments (10) (3)
* AR ERRERARRRZIA * These amounts are included in "Other expenses” or "Other income and

s S TERA R BRI A -

gains” on the face of the consolidated income statement.

2005/2006 F#H
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EEME 8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
AFEEEFZHMEMT The directors’ remuneration for the year is as follows:
£HE
GROUP
ZEEXRE —TTRF
2006 2005
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$'000
e Fees:
HiTEE Executive directors — —
BYERITES Independent non-executive directors 360 301
HITEEZ HbEE - Other emoluments of executive directors:
EREH - BEEEE; - Basic salaries, housing allowances,
Hip 2 R EYF S other allowances and benefits in kind 12,465 11,615
RS S22 Pension scheme contributions 72 72
12,897 11,988
M 2R
RENFZ RikE
Salaries, REIGER
allowances Pension
#%  and benefits scheme #st
Fees inkind  contributions Total
FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ZEEXE 2006
HITEE: Executive directors:
L M. Francis Cheung - 4,782 12 4,794
EEEL 4 M. Fung Chiu Chak, Victor — 2,691 12 2,703
BxEEs Mr. David Chien — 723 12 735
Eif e AN Miss Jennifer Kwok — 1,213 12 1,225
HEEEL Mr. Chiu Chin Hung — 1,641 12 1,653
EB4AL Mr. Wong Kay — 1,415 12 1,427
— 12,465 72 12,537
BkEH7EE . Independent non-executive directors:
BEEELE Mr. Fan Chor Ho, Paul 120 — — 120
B8 £ 4 4 Mr. Chau Cham Son 120 — — 120
ER A Mr. Tse Man Bun 120 — — 120
360 — — 360
. Totdl 360 12,465 72 12,897

2005/2006 Annual Report
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Cont'd)

) I 4:1
RENFE Eire
Salaries, LS
allowances Pension
#%  and benefits scheme Foy
Fees inkind  contributions Total
FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—ZERF 2005
WITEE: Executive directors:
REZLE Mr. Francis Cheung — 4,391 12 4,403
BEELE M:r. Fung Chiu Chak, Victor — 2,300 12 2,312
BoKE) R M:r. David Chien — 724 12 736
B2/ )E Miss Jennifer Kwok — 1,098 12 1,110
HRELAE Mr. Chiu Chin Hung — 1,735 12 1,747
BERWELE Mr. Wong Kay — 1,367 12 1,379
— 11,615 /2 11,687
BUFRTES Independent non-executive directors:
BlEERE Mr. Fan Chor Ho, Paul 120 — — 120
BEL T E Mr. Chau Cham Son 120 — — 120
EIpS i Mr. Tse Man Bun 6] — _ 6]
301 — — 301
st Total 301 11,615 72 11,088

AEER BECAEEHNEXRE
MEEAME 2% -

IfuGEHZEE
REFERBEFE  ANKRFHZ

EEHRADAESE -

There was no arrangement under which any director waived or agreed fo

waive any remuneration during the year.

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the current and prior years are all

directors of the Company.

2005/2006 F#H
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10. BiIE 10. TAX
BENGHREARBEBEE 2 (b5 Hong Kong profits tax has been provided af the rate of 17.5% (2005:
ERDEN2175%(ZTFRF : 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
17.5%) {EL2ER o A B H fth 3t [& fE 3R the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere in the PRC have been
BadeHEERASERE R 2 calculated at the applicable tax rates prevailing in the areas in which the
RITERBE  RBER1TEE  HZ Group operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations and
BREPIGE - pracfices in respect thereof.
£ 3]
GROUP
—EZRE —TTIF
2006 2005
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$'000
(KEEY)
[Restated)
RERGN 2 IR - Provision for tax in respect of profit for the year:
R PRC:
BB Hong Kong 986 531
Hih @ Elsewhere 12,809 8,175
13,795 8,706
FEEZRER Overprovision in the prior year:
R PRC:
BE Hong Kong — (1,080)
Hih (@ Elsewhere (90) (15)
(90) (1,095)
RIEFIE (F77229) Deferred tax (note 29) 19,031 5187
REE 2 MIERS B Total tax charge for the year 32,736 12,798

2005/2006 Annual Report
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10. TAX (Contd)

are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as follows:

&8
GROUP
“ETRE “TThF
2006 2005
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
(REET)
[Restated)
Profit before tax 89,567 11,122
Tox at the statutory rates 27,740 10,099
Adjustments in respect of current fax of
previous periods (90) (1,095)
Income not subject fo tax (2,740) (8,113)
Expenses not deductible for tax 5,058 7,008
Tax losses utilised from previous periods (1,067) (660)
Tax losses not recognised 3,835 5,559
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate
32,736 12,798

2005/2006 F#H
BAEMEREAE RN

A reconciliation of the tax charge applicable to profit before tax using the
statutory rates for the locations in which the Company and its subsidiaries
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1. ARARRREMLFAR, CFEE)

12.

AREIRBREEECHE-ZSTT
NEZAZ+T—HLEFEARBRE
fE(R 2 E518 52,356,000 0 (ZEZH
% 11,994,000 7T) (FiIaE32(0)) ©

RARERRBRREAERAER
/ (B518R)

FRERBF D RBAR G L @RK
RIEL AT E46%20,977,000% 7T (=
TTRF : FEE22,467,000% T (K&
BY))) RRAFEANDBITL AR
AEF 9 #768,739,8750 ( — T TR
% :761,910,0130%) 5T & -

AEEZERBERFTIZRAR A
A% AR SR FE 1L 46 F120,977,00078 T AT
HoERMAZMET YT BRR
g ARFERDRITL AR (WEE
fix £ 7 & F| B B A 2 768,739,875
BB - ARBREAFERNTEMER
P e B 42 (B35 17 12,398, 490% & AR 2
MEFHE -

ARNZFERABTENZBRESZ
FESREABRAREENE &
BE_ZZRF=A=+—-HILFE
WERESREEEE -

11.

12.

NET PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY

The net loss attributable to equity holders of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2006 dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company was HK$2,356,000 (2005: HK$ 1,994,000 (note 32(b)).

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic eamings per share amounts is based on the
net profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company of HK$20,977,000 [2005: net loss of HK$22,467,000
restated]), and the weighted average number of 768,739,875 (2005:
761,910,013) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount for the year is
based on the net profit for the year attributable o ordinary equity holders
of the Company of HK$20,977,000. The weighted average number of
ordinary shares used in the calculation is the ordinary shares in issue
during the year, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation of
768,739,875 and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
assumed to have been issued at no consideration on the deemed
exercise of all share options into ordinary shares during the year of

12,398,490.

A diluted loss per share amount for the year ended 31 March 2005 has
not been disclosed, as the share options outstanding during that year
had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share for that year.
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

GROUP
REREE FARRE BE
Equipment  Furniture RE BRE  NERE
and and Motor Motor  Leasehold Eh)
machinery fitures  vehicles yacht improvements Total
TET TET TEL TEL TEL TET
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
31 March 2006
Cost:
At beginning of year 721,602 38,640 17,007 6,098 58,966 842,313
Additions 25,873 1,136 1,529 — 1,600 30,338
Disposals and write-off (121,883) (10,502 (1,137) — (1,012)  (134,634]
Exchange realignment 177 46 66 — 468 757
At 31 March 2006 625,769 29,320 17,465 6,098 60,122 738,774
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment:
At beginning of year 621,971 33,607 11,442 6,098 48,662 721,780
Depreciation provided
during the year 38,914 1,170 1,908 — 3,164 45,156
Disposals and write-off (116,764) (9,436 (800 — (1,012) (128,112]
Exchange realignment 141 39 28 — 462 670
At 31 March 2006 544,262 25,380 12,578 6,098 51,176 639,494
Net book value:
At 31 March 2006 81,507 3,940 4,887 - 8,946 99,280
At 31 March 2005
[restated) 99,631 5,033 5,565 — 10,304 120,533
2005/2006 “F#k
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13. W12 - HBRRRIE (&)

£H

“EEREZR=1-H

KA
£
AE
e R
ELipE
EREN (1)
R-ETRF=A=1-H
ZHTER
A
£
KERNERR
e R
ELipE
EREN (1)

RoFFEFZA=-R

RoFEMEZAZ+-R

31 March 2005

Cost:
Atbeginning of year
Addiions
Disposals and wiite-off
Reclassificafion fo
invesiment properties [nofe 14]

At 31 March 2005

Accumuloted depreciation
and impairment:
Atbeginning of year
Depreciation provided
during the year
Disposals and wiite-off
Reclassificafion fo
invesiment properties nofe 14]

At 31 March 2005

Net book value:
At 31 March 2005

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)

GROUP
HETBRET RERKE SARKE ik
leasehold ~ Equipment  Furniture af:3 B NREE
land and and and Motor ~ Moor  Leasehold Ch
buildings  machinery fixtures  vehicles yacht improvements Total
TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEn
HKS000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000
(45 (47
[Restated] [Restated]
17531 714576 42835 15,052 6,098 580646 854,738
VARV 752 2403 - 320 27,046
- [16545])  [4947) (448 - — (21,940
(17,531} - - - - - [(17.531)
— 72602 38640 17,007 6098 58960 842313
3190 585691 36870 10,143 0,094 44344 686,332
330 49,585 1,373 1,677 4 4318 57,287
- [13,305]  [4,636] (378 - - [18,319)
3,520 - - - - - (3,520
— 021971 33607 11,442 6,098 486062 721780
— 99,631 5,033 5,965 — 10304 120,533
14341 128885 5,965 4909 4 14302 168,406

At 31 March 2004

AREETHRBRERCERRITRH
ASBERHEBROTEEZHER (ME

27) ©

Certain of the Group's equipment and machinery were pledged to banks

as security for banking facilities granted to the Group [note 27).

2005/2006 Annual Report

TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED



13. % - BERKRE (&)

AEEYE  HERREIKEFE
BRTINBEENSAEZEE

R M ER

ASEREERNBERER 2RE
LRsmaB R A AR R ERRE
BRERENT

JZEN
REHE
RETRERBRE

fREFE

A 5 4t e R
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2006 —ZEEXRF=ZR=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)

The net book value of the property, plant and equipment of the Group
includes the following assets which are held under finance leases:

£H
GROUP
—EERF —TTRF
2006 2005
FET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000

Equipment and machinery — 2,707

The gross amounts of the Group's equipment and machinery held for use
under operating leases and the related accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses are as follows:

£8
GROUP

ZE2ERF —TThHF

2006 2005

FET F#ET

HK$’000 HK$'000

Cost 94,944 128,084
Accumulated depreciation (76,303) (108,810)
Accumulated impairment losses (1,170) (1,412)
Net book value 17,471 17,862

2005/2006 F#H
BAEMEREAE RN
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31 March 2006 ZZEEXRF=A=+—H

14, REYE

R A—F 2 EEE
55

5

BRELHR
BEEH AR (H13)
ATEED

EnBE

R=A=+—HBZzEHE

AEBZREMERATHEHBRES
EnffsamT

REE 4
REEA

AEREZRENVEER -_TERF=
A=t HHBUEXSEBYMER
ERERNEETRBERAERARR
ARMBRRERAGEEENEE -
REMENRELEHNEETSE =
o BRBBRZE-TFBRENPH
&M EE33(a) °

AREETRENEEERRITAX
SERHERITERE 2R (HE27) -

EARAEEREMECE—THESH
NE123E 1248 -

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

£8
GROUP

—EER —ZTRF

2006 2005

FET FET

HK$'000 HK$'000

Carrying amount at 1 April 995,540 950,350

Additions 15,957 —

Disposals (13,800) (750]
Reclassification from leasehold land

and buildings nofe 13 — 14,011

Fair value changes 60,234 31,929

Exchange realignment 17,219 —

Carrying amount af 31 March 1,075,150 905,540

The Group's investment properties are held under the following lease
terms in the following geographical locations:

H
PRC
B Hibih & Foh
Hong Kong Elsewhere Total
FHET FHET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Medium term leases 9,900 — 9,900
long term leases 52,030 1,013,220 1,065,250
61,930 1,013,220 1,075,150

The Group's investment properties were revalued on an open market,
existing use basis, on 31 March 2006, by Vigers Appraisal and
Consulting Limited, a firm of independent professionally qualified
property valuers. The investment properties are leased fo third parties
under operating leases, further summary details of which are included in
note 33(al to the financial statements.

Certain of the Group's investment properties were pledged to banks as
security for banking facilities granted to the Group (note 27).

Further particulars of the Group's investment properties are included on
pages 123 to 124.

2005/2006 Annual Report
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15. FE{T LA ER

16.

RIUA—HAZEEE
SR 2 3
RNBEASHERE 1T T E
(Kt5t2.2(a)

RED
FRHH

R=ZHA=t—RZKHAEE
AT AE A FEHEOR
BARRER
A& 2 RE D

eSS

MELWHRETHHEOFE - L

REE

HETUE

F&ETF

AEERE
BRIz FIE (Hiite)
ER AR

FRER

A 5 4t e R

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

Carrying amount at 1 April
As previously reported
Effect of adopting HKAS 17
[note 2.2(a))

As restated
Amortised during the year

Carrying amount at 31 March

Current portion included in
other receivables,
prepayments and deposits

Non-current portion

31 March 2006 —ZEEXRF=ZR=+—H

GROUP
—EERX —TEhE
2006 2005
FET FHET
HK$000 HK$'000
(423l
[Restated)
1,509 1,545
1,509 1,545
(36) (36)
1,473 1,509
(36) (36)
1,437 1,473

The leasehold land is held under a medium term lease and is situated in

Hong Kong.

16. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Balance af beginning of year
Additions during the year
Interest capitalised (note ¢)
Exchange realignment

Balance af end of year

2005/2006 F#H
BAEMEREAE RN

GROUP
S
2006 2005
FH7 FHT
HK$’000 HK$'000
311,934 263,604
142,816 45,366
8,809 2,964
5,820 -
469,379 311,934
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31 March 2006 ZZEEXRF=A=+—H

17. B R AR

FLEmBe - BAAK

P8Rl 2 R
—FREMOBARBEEZHD

NN PN S
—FRIBPLB/RDEE D

REEH  MEBRRZRFRRHE
RRAZFBEOREERREE < FA
RBEENRBDAGBZMBLRAER
WEBTERS M AFRBDEE
ZHBRARGEFRBANBEERE
A-EREE - -MBARGEFZKE
ERANFERE -

AREEERBNERMB AR RN
HTRER R A]EEKX5080,000,0007%
JT(ZEZTHF + 80,000,000 L)
FZMBRR #HREE BREM
ERERBELEEES -

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

NG
COMPANY
—EERX “ZTTRHF
2006 2005
FET FET
HK$000 HK$'000
Unlisted shares, af cost 4,120 4,120
Amounts due from subsidiaries 762,665 770,485
Portion due within one year,
classified as current assets (39,955) [70,230)
722,710 700,255
Amounts due fo subsidiaries (120,090) (125,714)
Portion due within one year,
classified as current liabilities 120,090 125,714
726,830 704,375

At the balance sheet date, the amounts due from and to subsidiaries are
unsecured and interestfree. The balances with subsidiaries included in
the current assefs and current liabilities have no fixed terms of repayment
whereas the balances with subsidiaries included in non-current assets are
not expected fo be repaid within one year from the balance sheet date.
The carrying amounts of balances with the subsidiaries approximate to
their fair values.

The Company has undertaken not fo demand repayment of the amount
due from a subsidiary, Tysan Foundation Limited, of HK$80,000,000
(2005: HK$80,000,000), in order to let the subsidiary maintain the
required minimum working capital as stipulated by government
authorities.

2005/2006 Annual Report
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=
=
\/ﬂE’\ /

ARAZEBHBRAAFBEMT -

MR

S 2 i B

Place of

incorporation/

78

Name

registration
and operations

ZA(BE)ERAERAT BB
Tysan [Hong Kong) Holdings Hong Kong
limited
RAMBETRERAQA] BB
(Ktat1%k3) Hong Kong
Tysan Foundation Limited
(notes 1.and 3)
FARE(RP) ARAT P
(Bt 1) Macau
Tysan Construction (Macau)
Limited [note 1)
ZABWMEERR AR (HF3) BB
Tysan Machinery Hire Limited Hong Kong
(note 3)
FAMETRE (BE)ERAA N
(Wret1) Hong Kong

Tysan Contractors [Hong Kong]
Limited [note 1)

A 5 4t e R

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2006 —ZEEXRF=ZR=+—H

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

EBTR
BERG
HEMBRAEE
Nominal value

of issued and
fully paid share/
registered capital

EBR2ET
Ordinary
HK$2

B
27,000,0007% 7T
3,000,000 7T
Ordinary
HK$27,000,000
Deferred
HK$3,000,000

ERE

RFI# 25,000 7T
Ordinary
MOP25,000

B
10,0008 7T
200,000/ 7T
Ordinary
HK$10,000
Deferred
HK$200,000

TEk2ET
Ordinary
HK$2

2005/2006 F#H

EAREIEZ
BREBDL
Percentage
of equity TEEK
attributable to Principal
the Company activities
—EERE —TThF
2006 2005
100 100 REER
Investment
holding
100 100 Hh B AT
Foundation
piling
100 100 Hh B AT
Foundation
piling
100 100 WA E
Machinery
hiring
100 100 WEITE R
HAERE
Foundation
piling and
project
management

BAEMERAERAA
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31 March 2006 ZZEEXRF=A=+—H

17. B ATER (£&)

AREZEBHBRATFENT : (8)

=1

Name

RATHIBRERRA
(1)

Tysan Geotechnical limited
[note 1)

SEEBMIEARLA
(Htat1)

Proficiency Equipment Limited
[note 1)

FETREEERAT
(1)

Proficiency Engineering Limited
[note 1)

MBERAR (F1)

Lion Bright Limited
[note 1)

FAEEABRDA (HF1K3)
Tysan Management Limited
[notes 1 and 3)

HEARADA
Sun Sparkle Limited

AL,
AR EELE
Place of
incorporation/
registration

and operations

BB
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

BB
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

BE
Hong Kong

Bt
Hong Kong

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd)

EBTR
BERG
HEMRAEE
Nominal valve
of issued and
fully paid share/
registered capital

EER2ET
Ordinary
HK$2

6,750,000/ 7T
Ordinary
HK$6,750,000

EmR2ET
Ordinary
HK$2

EmR2ET
Ordinary
HK$2

B 1008 T
EXER 2T
Ordinary
HK$100
Deferred

HK$2

EEk2ET
Ordinary
HK$2

2005/2006 Annual Report

TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

ARAEEG 2
REBDL
Percentage
of equity

attributable to

the Company

NFE ZTTRF

2006 2005
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100

TEXK
Principal
activities

& B M IR
Site

investigation

BmEE R
BE
Machinery
hiring and
frading

REHETRRRY
Provision of
engineering

services

BmEE R
BHE
Machinery
hiring and
frading

hEEE

Corporate
management

XA
Corporate
financing
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31 March 2006 —ZEEXRF=ZR=+—H

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

ARRIZEEWMBRBFENT « (B Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd)
BBITR
AL, BERG ADRIEMGZ
A REERE AMRAEE BRERDE
Place of Nominal value Percentage
incorporation/ of issued and of equity TEXER
=y registration fully paid share/ attributable to Principal
Name and operations registered capital the Company activities
ZEERF _TTIHH
2006 2005
ERAERRTA BB EBBET 100 100 hERE
Great Unison Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Corporate
HK$ 1 financing
ZAREERBER AT Bt EEkR2ET 100 100 KREER
Tysan Invesiment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Investment
HK$2 holding
FAMEERREERLDA BB EBm2ET 100 100 REER
Tysan Property Development Hong Kong Ordinary Investment
& Investment Limited HK$2 holding
FAZEBERADA Bt TRk 2ET 100 100 REZER
Tysan Construction Hong Kong Ordinary Investment
Company limited HK$2 holding
MRIRERRRR (Kat1) BB EBR2ET 100 100 MERE
Faithmark Investments Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Property
[note 1) HK$2 investment
Tremend Yield Limited Bt L mA207%8 T 100 100 MERE
(Wret1) Hong Kong Ordinary Property
[note 1) HK$20 investment
=HEREBRDF (A1) BB EBR2ET 100 100 MERE
Trions Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Property
[note 1) HK$2 investment
EEREBRDA (K1) Bt TEm2ET 100 100 SERERYES
Sure Faith Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Property
(note 1) HK$2 holding
2005/2006 “F#k

BAEMERAERAA
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17. B ATER (£&)

AREZEBHBRATFENT : (8)

A

AR E R

Place of

incorporation/

=g registration

Name and operations

BREEWERRRR (A1) B

Duncan Properties Limited Hong Kong
[note 1)

Dragonhill Limited BB
(Bt 1) Hong Kong
[note 1)

MBEREBRAR (K1) B

Great Regent Investments Hong Kong
Limited [note 1)

BBER LA (K1) BB

Great Prosper limited Hong Kong

[note 1)

FAFMERE (KB ERRE  HEAR

(R [ RERAFHE HAE
FHEARRRA]) (B 1Rk4) A3
Tysan Property Development People's
(Tianjin) Company  Limited Republic
(Formerly known as “Tianjin of China/
Tysan Property Development Mainland
Company Limited”) China

[notes 1 and 4)

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd)

EBTR
BERG
HEMRAEE
Nominal valve
of issued and
fully paid share/
registered capital

EmR2ET
Ordinary
HK$2

TRk 2ET
Ordinary
HK$2

EmR2ET
Ordinary
HK$2

LEAR100 T
Ordinary
HK$100

15,500,000 7T
US$15,500,000

2005/2006 Annual Report

RAFEEZ
REB DL
Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company
“BRERE -ZTTIF
2006 2005
100 100
100 100
100 100
90 90
90 0

TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

TEXK
Principal
activities

KEZER
Investment
holding

BEER
[nvestment

holding

BEZER
Investment
holding

BEER
Investment
holding

MEZR
Property
development



17. B ABER (£&)

AATZEBMBATEENT (%

MR

S 2 i B

Place of

incorporation/

=y registration
Name and operations

FARBME (L8 BRAT REAR
(e[ LBEESEME HME,
HEKEERAR]) o B R 3
(Htet1X%5) People’s

Tysan Land (Shanghai) Republic
limited (Formerly known as of China/
"Shanghai Putuo Duncan Mainland
Property Development China
Company limited")

[notes T and 5)

FAIRRBEAERAR BB
(Kat 1) Hong Kong

Tysan Engineering Company
Limited (note 1)

ZFAIR (FE)ARRAA B
(Bt 1) Hong Kong

Tysan Engineering (HK)

Company limited
[note 1)

ZABHAERDA (HiE1) BB

Tysan Trading Company Hong Kong
Limited (note 1)

ZREBRFR LA (B BE

China Garden Infernational Hong Kong
Limited (note 1)

ARREBBRRDA (M) BB

Red Shine Investment Limited Hong Kong

[note 1)

A 5 4t e R
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2006 —ZEEXRF=ZR=+—H

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd)

EBTR
BERG
HEMRAEE
Nominal value

of issued and
fully paid share/
registered capital

17,400,000 7T
US$17,400,000

10,000 # 7T
Ordinary
HK$10,000

EREl
4,100,000 & 7T
Ordinary
HK$4,100,000

ER100% T
Ordinary
HK$100

BB 100 T
Ordinary
HK$100

Epelivioy
Ordinary
HK$2

2005/2006 F#H

BAEMERAERAA

ROTEEZ
REB DL
Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company
“RERE -TTIF
2006 2005
80 80
70 70
70 70
60 60
60 60
60 60

TEEHR
Principal
activities

ES
Property
development

BREER
Investment
holding

RUSHR
Wl AR 75
Provision of
electrical and
mechanical

services

—KRE5
Generdl
frading

HEE
[nvestment
holding

BEER
[nvestment
holding
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17. B ATER (£&)

AREZEBHBRATFENT : (8)

AL,
AR EELE
Place of
incorporation/
=g registration
Name and operations
BRREBRRR (K1) BB
Hiat Investment Limited Hong Kong
[note 1)
EMEABRAT (BaE1) BB
Carriway Limited (nofe 1) Hong Kong
BRITARRR (Bat1) BB
Fund House Limited (nofe 1) Hong Kong
EEMEEE (L8) REAR
BRARE (Hit1R4) *AE,
Duncan Property Management A
(Shanghai) Company Limited People’s
[notes T and 4) Republic
of China/
Mainland
China
LEERBRREE REAR
HEKLARAT HAE,
iz 1X%4) BN
Shanghai China Garden People’s
International Real Estate Republic
Development & Management of China/
Company limited Mainland
[notes T and 4) China

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd)

EBTR
BERG
HEMRAEE
Nominal valve
of issued and
fully paid share/
registered capital

EmR2ET
Ordinary
HK$2

TRk 2ET
Ordinary
HK$2

EmR2ET
Ordinary
HK$2

500,000% 7T
US$500,000

5,000,0003 7T
US$5,000,000

2005/2006 Annual Report

TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

ARAEEG 2
REBDL
Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company
NFE ZTTRF
2006 2005
60 60
60 60
60 60
60 60
60 60

TEXK
Principal
activities

MERE
Property
investment

BEER
[nvestment

holding

BEER
Investment

holding

MEER
Property

management

MERE
Property

investment
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17. WE A ARIER (&) 17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

AATZEBMBATEENT (%

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd)

BBITR
AL, BERG ADRIEMGZ
A REERE AMRAEE BRERDE
Place of Nominal value Percentage

incorporation/ of issued and of equity TEXER

=y registration fully paid share/ attributable to Principal

Name and operations registered capital the Company activities

—22ARE —ZTETIRF
2006 2005

LERBESREHE FEAR 10,000,000 T 60 60 MRER

HEEEERAR HFE,  US$10,000,000 Property

(HtaE1X%5) B A 3t development
Shanghai Changning Duncan People’s
Property Development Republic
Company limited of China/
[notes T and 5) Mainland
China

FBEEEHER FEAR 5,000,000% 7T 60 60 MEZRE

BIREBRAA HFEH US$5,000,000 Property

(Htet1k4) B A3t development
Shanghai Duncan Property People’s
Development Company Republic
Limited (notes 1 and 4) of China/
Mainland
China

Consco Investment Bt il 58.25 58.25 RAZRK

Company Limited Hong Kong 100,000/ 7T Investment

(Wret1) Ordinary holding

[note 1) HK$100,000

RARKIRAERARA BB gl 50 50 REEFR

(HieF1k2) Hong Kong 10,200,000 % 7T BETR

Tysan Building Construction Ordinary Provision of

Company limited HK$10,200,000 building and

[notes 1 and 2)

2005/2006 F#H

BAEMERAERAA

construction

works



I 5 ¢ W

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2006 ZZEEXRF=A=+—H

17. B ATER (£&)

AREZEBHBRATFENT : (8)

=1

Name

FATIRKIABRLA
(et 1% 2)

Tysan Project Management
Limited
(notes 1 and 2)

BMIEARECRM) AROA

(HaF1 - 2X%6)
Mac Tysan Construction

[Macau) Limited

[notes 1, 2 and 6)

KEBBERKEER AT
(i1 - 2%5)

Tianjin Infernational Building

Company Limited
[notes 1, 2 and 5)

AL,
AR EELE
Place of
incorporation/
registration

and operations

BB
Hong Kong

P

Macau

REAR
£ME,/
Bl A
People’s
Republic
of China/
Mainland
China

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd)

EBTR
BERG
HEMRAEE
Nominal valve
of issued and
fully paid share/
registered capital

EER2ET
Ordinary
HK$2

Rl

BP9 25,000 7T
Ordinary
MOP25,000

10,000,000% 7T
US$10,000,000

2005/2006 Annual Report

ADAEEZ
REBDL
Percentage
of equity
attributable to

the Company
“BERE
2006

50

50

46.6

TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

“EERHF

2005

50

46.6

TEXK
Principal
activities

REBFR
HEETR
Provision of
building and
constfruction

works

RHEFR
BETIR
Provision of
building and
consfruction
works

MERE

Property
investment



17. B ABER (£&)

AATZEBMBATEENT (%
fitazt :

1.

2.

6.

BRMBRRIRE -

ARRBEREZSERRIZEZRE A
HEHRZEERE HRERER/E
REIZMBRT -

ELBROEEERES (REHEAQA
Afs R B E ZEFEBB
1,000,000,00078 7T 2 ({7 81 BR F [ 42
FE5EZ BRRE ZEEIERTR
BB - MEERKREAE LK
F - MAREREBEERNERRE
MBS (ZERHD ZEHBAR
Oh - EZAR ZEBBREEANLER
EEROCARSRETARES KL
1,000,000,000,0005 7T) °

ZERRTIRES UL M A5
BELX -

ZERARETEDEGIER AT
AERE-

ZRBRRAFEEFKL

ERAFIZARAMBLARIREZTARAR
REZAFEXRERBEAFZEABAAKE
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NEMHBAREIBRATERAE -

18.

g

ERaEER

i BB R
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17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd)
Notes:
1. Held through subsidiaries.

2. The Company has the power fo cast the maijority of votes at meetings of the
board of directors of these entities and therefore they are regarded as
subsidiaries of the Company.

3. The deferred shares carry no rights to dividends (other than a fixed non-
cumulative dividend at the rate of 5% per annum for any financial year
during which the net profit of the relevant company available for dividends
exceeds HK$1 billion], no rights to vote at general meetings, no rights fo
receive any surplus on a retum of capital on a winding-up (other than the
amount paid up on such shares, provided that the holders of the ordinary
shares of that company have been distributed in such a winding-up of a
sum of HK$ 1,000 billion in respect of each ordinary share).

4. These entities are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under the
PRC law.

5. These entities are registered as Sino-foreign joint ventures under the PRC
law.

6. The enfity was newly established during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details
of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

£8
GROUP
—EER —EERF
2006 2005
FETT FEL
HK$’000 HK$'000
Share of net assefs — —
Amount due from an associate 234 234
234 234
less: Provision for impairment (234) —
— 234
2005/2006 F#H

BAEMERAERAA
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18. BENTER (&)

’ATZK AREER 28 NE

BERRAF  RAERERAFER

EBEE
£ Business
Name structure
NERERRAF NE]
Turbo Dragon Investment Corporate

Limited

FRIHESERRIEZELREED
B DA FBE S AN & B AT B
ERARREMEE I AEEEZE R
A -FEZRAR FHVHEMBELAE
SIBANABRILE o

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Cont'd)

The amount due from an associate is unsecured, interestree and has no
fixed terms of repayment.

The carrying amount of the balance with an associate approximates fo ifs
fair valve.

Particulars of the principal associate are as follows:

AEEREGZ
BEEBEOL
P2 81T Percentage
LA At fi of ownership
Particulars FX 37 1t 26 interest TEXHK
of issued Place of attributable Principal
shares held incorporation to the Group activity
BREBR BB 50 REER
HE1ET Hong Kong Investment
Ordinary holding
shares of
HK$1 each

The above table lists the associate of the Group which, in the opinion of
the directors, principally affected the Group's share of results of the
associates or formed a substantial portion of the Group's interests in
associates. To give details of other associates would, in the opinion of
the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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19. GOODWILL AND NEGATIVE GOODWILL

GROUP
aneE
Gk Negative st
Goodwill goodwill Total
fit 5t FET FET FET
Note  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(K13 2.4(a))
[note 2.4(a))
31 March 2006
1 April 2005:
Cost as previously reported 23,474 (92,953) (69,479
Effect of adopting:
HK(SIC)-Int 21
43,717 47,459 Q1,176
HKFRS 3 — 45,494 45,494
Cost as restated 67,191 — 67,191
Accumulated amortisation
and impairment
as previously reported (23,474) 68,613 45,139
Effect of adopting:
HK(SIC)}nt 21
(43,717) (26,810) (70,527
HKFRS 3 — (471,803) (41,803)
Accumulated amortisation
and impairment as restated (67,191) — (67,191)

Net carrying amount
at 1 April 2005 and
31 March 2006 — —

2005/2006 F#H
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BHEREEE (&)

I
I

£H

—EZRFZRA=1—H
R-TTNFMA—H :
MR 23,2 R
RMEE (RHREBZES)
—REENRZTE

RBI 2K

AR 2 W RETHERRE

RMEE (RHREBZES)
-REENRZTE

RBEY 2 Rt #H RRE

fREFE

R-ZENMFNA—HZRA
(3B 25t 85 TR E)

FREBARA
(B34 1) (G 7))
W-FEEF=A=+-H

2EEFE
R-BEREF=A=+-A:
R

B BB RAME

R (E

19. GOODWILL AND NEGATIVE GOODWILL (Cont'd)

GROUP

[t 7
Note

31 March 2005

At 1 April 2004:
Cost as previously reported
Effect of adopting
HK(SICHnt 21

Cost as restated

Accumulated amortisation
and impairment
as previously reported
Effect of adopting
HK(SICHnt 21

Accumulated amortisation
and impairment as restated

Net carrying amount

Costat 1 April 2004, net of
accumulated
amortisation and impairment
Recognised as income/
[amortisation provided)
during the year (resfated)

Net carrying amount at
31 March 2005

At 31 March 2005:
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

and impairment

Net carrying amount

2005/2006 Annual Report
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2.2(e)

2.2(e)

aBE

Gk Negative oS
Goodwill goodwill Total
TET TET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
23,474 (92,953) [69,479)
43,717 47,459 Q1,176
67,191 (45,494) 21,697
(23,387) 64,819 41,432
(43,717) [23,592) (67,309)
(67,104) 41,227 (25,877)
87 (4,267 (4,180)
87 (4,267) (4,180

(87] 576 489
— (3,691) (3,691)
67,191 (45,494) 21,697
(67,191) 41,803 [25,388)
— (3,691) (3,691)
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20. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT
OR LOSS/SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

&8
GROUP
—EERF  CZTTIF
2006 2005
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$'000
Listed equity investments
in Hong Kong, at market value 372 432
21. INVENTORIES
£H
GROUP
—EERF —ZTTAHF
2006 2005
FET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
Raw materials 329 3,209
Spare parts and others 8,344 6,942
8,673 10,151

22. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

£H

GROUP
—EERFE  CZTTIF
2006 2005
FHET TET
HK$’000 HK$'000
At beginning of year 11,468 16,855
Properties sold during the year — (5,387)
Atend of year 11,468 11,468

The Group's properties held for sale are located in the Mainland China
and are held under long term leases.

2005/2006 E#H 101
BHE MR RA R A




I 5 ¢ W

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2006 ZZEEXRF=A=+—H

23. BEEY

EFPE#EEH
IRZRZK
REFPEBEN
TRRZIE

FREE 2B NREANEE
ARFHREHEHEREN R
EHEREE

o B R

REER  sTARKE ZERRARER
BEEFRECABEGNIRZRESY
E 442100008 T (Z T T 0 F ¢
35,535,000/ 7T) (F5E24) °

23. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

Amounts due from customers
for contract works

Amounts due fo customers
for contract works

Confract costs incurred plus
recognised profits less
recognised losses to dafe

less: Progress billings received
and receivable

%8

GROUP
S A
2006 2005
T FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
142,476 99,381
(19,261) (19,373)
123,215 80,008
2,232,219 1,783,356
(2,109,004) (1,703,348
123,215 80,008

Atthe balance sheet date, refentions held by customers for contract works

included in trade receivables amounted to approximately
HK$44,210,000 (2005: HK$35,535,000) (note 24).
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24. TRADE RECEIVABLES

58
GROUP

—EERE —EERF
2006 2005
FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000

Trade receivables:
Within 90 days 172,679 106,923
91 to 180 days 2,333 1,164
181 to 360 days 153 973
Over 360 days 180 43]
175,345 109,491
Retention receivables (note 23) 44,210 35,535
219,555 145,026

The Group has established credit policies that follow local industry
standards. The average normal credit periods offered to trade customers
other than for refention receivables are within 90 days, and are subject
fo periodic review by management. In view of the aforementioned and
the fact that the Group's frade receivables relate fo a large number of
diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk.

The carrying amounts of the frade receivables approximate to their fair
values.

2005/2006 F#H
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25. BN E SRR EFTHIE 25. TRADE PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
5] A7
GROUP COMPANY
—EERX —TTRF ZEERX —ZTTAHF
2006 2005 2006 2005
FET FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
EREZERR Trade payables:
30HA Within 30 days 98,160 65,641 54 17
31THZE90H 3110 90 days 8,298 13,313 — —
91HZE180H 91 to 180 days 511 920 —
1808 A £ Over 180 days 1,311 4,407 — —
108,280 84,281 54 17
R RE S Retention payables 15,759 16,502 —
FEETFIR Accruals 50,991 42,008 650 516
175,030 142,791 704 533
EBNEZERFcEAEREEQTEM The carrying amounts of the trade payables approximate to their fair
o values.

26. HMENRIE - EWWET £ KU 26. OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND RECEIPTS IN

MIE ADVANCE

HithENHIBEARER  FHERY Other payables are non-interestbearing and have an average term of
AR - HMEMFE ERET 2 one month. The carrying amounts of other payables, deposits received
FERFEz RAEEE X FEN and receipts in advance approximate fo their fair values.

% o
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27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

£
BERAZE GROUP
Effective HfR Z—2TRX —TTRF
inferest rate Maturity 2006 2005
FET FET
% HK$'000 HK$'000
Unsecured:
Bank loans 55-61 ZBEZRERE 218,720 203,000
—TENF
2006 - 2008
Trust receipt loans 6.1-8.0 ZZTETRE 22,351 11,258
2006
241,071 214,258
Secured:
Bank loans 53-6.3 :;ﬁ;ﬁ/\_\gi 410,943 179,446
QOOO 20 0
Mortgage loans 59 ZETRHF 6,500 1,500
2006
417 443 180,946
Total bank borrowings 658,514 395,204
Analysed info:
Bank borrowings repayable:
Within one year or
on demand 202,680 123,918
In the second year 169,676 84,910
In the third to fifth years,
inclusive 286,158 186,376
658,514 305,204
Portion due within one year,
classified as current
liabilities (202,680) (123,918)
Long term portion 455,834 271,286
2005/2006 “F#k 105
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27. MHESRITEE (&)

AEBECHRITBEENRASEREE
H BR [ )% {8 48 58 49 604,228,000/ 7T
(ZZTZTFHF : 346,830,000 T) 2 &

REBEMEE (M E13) RIREYE (K
FE14) EHE R

5 AARERARAETHER
AMBZEERERVRER (M
35) -

AEEMARTEEDRIPHF X
B RITBEZRAEREAFEMR
% o
ARBENETRARE BB 2R
fEEREENT

BT

AR

27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS (Cont'd)

The Group's bank borrowings were secured by certain of the Group's
equipment and machinery (note 13] and investment properties (note 14)
with an aggregate net book value of approximately HK$604,228,000
(2005: HK$346,830,000) atf the balance sheet date.

In addition, the Company has executed guarantees in respect of
borrowing facilities granted to certain of the Company’s subsidiaries
(note 35).

All of the bank borrowings of the Group bear inferest at floating inferest
rates. The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings approximate to their

fair values.

The carrying amounts of the Group's bank borrowings denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi are as follows:

—BERF —ETRF

2006 2005

FET TET

HK$'000 HK$'000

Hong Kong dollars 421,206 351,053
Renminbi 237,308 44,151
658,514 395,204
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28. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES

REFE AEERKERBHEER In the prior year, the Group leased certain of its plant and machinery for
BHBETHS ZSHNRERAR its machinery hiring business. These leases were classified as finance

BEMA B THEHA—F -

ANFEBELEREWNT

leases and had remaining lease terms of one year.

REER  EREBEHTARRKENR At the balance sheet date, the total future minimum lease payments under
finance leases and their present values, were as follows:
FEEQONHK BEBOARRE
Minimum Present value
&H lease of minimum
GROUP payments lease payments
ZEERE "TTHF  ZERRE —TTERF
2006 2005 2006 2005
FET TET FET TET

AR THIMREEE 2R

—FR

RIEBRERNOHN
RREE

RARERR

BEHORMNFARFE

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Amounts payable:
Within one year — 252 — 250

Total minimum finance
lease payments - 252 - 250

Future finance charges — (2]

Tofal net finance
lease payables - 250

Portion classified
as current liabilities — (250)

long term portion — —

2005/2006 F#H
BAEMEREAE RN
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29. IEHERIE

RAFEER  BEERGREREEZ

R_ETNFNA—A
MR 2 8
CIBIEGE:S

2]

FRFABRER/
(RBZXMIR) ZELEHR
(&&5) (HEE10)

R-ZETRF=A=1—H

]

FRARBHRKAG
ZIEREHIE (H10)

FARERTNG
ZERERA

R-FEARE=A=T-F

29. DEFERRED TAX

as follows:

GROUP

At 1 April 2004:
As previously reporfed
Prior year adjustment

As restated

Deferred tax credited/(charged)
fo the income sfatement during
the year [resfated] (note 10)

At 31 March 2005

AT April 2005:
As previously reported
Prior year adjustment

As resfated

Deferred fax charged fo the income
statement during the year [note 10)
Deferred tax debited fo equity
during the year

At 31 March 2006

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are

A {35 85

w2 B 1R

JNEE Losses available

BIERE for offset

Accelerated tax  against future B3

depreciation  taxable profit Total
TET TET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(10,630] 986 (9,644)
(226,986) — (226,9806)
(237,6106) 986 (236,630)
(6,078) 891 (5,187)
(243,694) 1,877 (241,817)
(6,256) 1,877 (4,379)
(237,438) — [237,438)
(243,694) 1,877 [241,817)
(17,314) (1,717 (19,031)
(5,681] — [5,681]
[266,689) 160 [266,529)
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30.

EERIE (&)

AEBREBEEZHEERA
257,487,000 T (Z T T R F
257,986,000 ) - A A E IR Hi K
HHBABEB AR ZARERT &
F  MREEEEECHMBLAGME
B2 EBERUNTERRABELHIE
BE o

R-ZEEXE=ZA=+—0 #%E&
BEETHBARSEE AT 2 RKEHN
BNELZEMNBENS  ARZEE
HEELE  KEETEBIZHE
B RYABREAECHEAR
(ZZTRE &) -

ARBIRN FEBR 2B E LB
FISRER -

SN
Kt

ERE
BREEI10ETZ
T3/ A%2,000,000,0000%
—ETRF
2,000,000,000/%)

BREAIRART
FREE10ETZ
3 1% 837,465,903 /%
(Z2FRF:
764,965,903%)

29.

30.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2006 —ZEEXRF=ZR=+—H

DEFERRED TAX (Cont'd)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$257,487,000
(2005: HK$257,986,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses
as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been lossmaking for some
fime.

At 31 March 2006, there was no significant unrecognised deferred tax
liability (2005: Nil) for taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
eamings of certain of the Group's subsidiaries or associates as the Group
has no liability fo additional tax should such amounts be remitted.

There are no income tax consequences affaching to the payment of
dividends by the Company fo its shareholders.

SHARE CAPITAL
Shares
A
COMPANY
—22RE _—TTIF
2006 2005
FET T#T
HK$'000 HK$'000
Authorised:
2,000,000,000
(2005: 2,000,000,000)
ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 each 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid:
837,465,903
(2005: 764,965,903)
ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 each 83,746 76,496
2005/2006 %
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30. A& (&)

WAFERBEERN  RA2 S
M :

@ REFE BREARAER=FT
E-FNAZTNBRIEZER
R #E =+ &) - 1,800,00017 B A 1 F}
BrRERBEBTESR0.20
ABITESTE - BF%171,800,000
BEREEI0E T MK, « B
% # R (8 5360,000/8 T °

b) MAFER - REFEERE
| + 37,500,00013 K 35,000,000
m (ZZEZHF : 13,000,00015)
BRERT 2 REEE D RIEE
7EEM%0.2528 L X &F%0.15/%
T(ZETRHE 0158 7T) BT
fif + BUF %4772,500,0000% (= Z
ZTHF : 13,000,0000%) FHE(E
0108 Tz lfn HeBREAR
14,700,000 7L ( Z T T A F -
1,950,000/ 7T)

30. SHARE CAPITAL (Cont'd)

The movements in share capital for the current and prior years were as
follows:

[a) Inthe prior year, the subscription rights attaching to 1,800,000
share options under the old share option scheme of the Company,
which was terminated on 28 August 2002, were exercised at an
issue price of HK$0.20 per share, resulting in the issue of
1,800,000 shares of HK$0.10 each for a total cash
consideration of HK$360,000.

(b]  During the year, the subscription rights attaching to 37,500,000
and 35,000,000 [2005: 13,000,000 share options under the
existing share option scheme were exercised at issue prices of
HK$0.252 and HK$0.15 (2005: HK$0.15) per share ,
respectively, resulting in the issue of 72,500,000 (2005:
13,000,000) shares of HK$0.10 each for a total cash
consideration of HK$ 14,700,000 (2005: HK$1,950,000).

2005/2006 Annual Report
TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED




A 5 4t e R
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2006 —ZEEXRF=ZR=+—H

30. RA& (#&) 30. SHARE CAPITAL (Cont'd)
IWTT32Z il AR B EITRAZ A summary of the transactions during the current and prior years with
B AFERBAEFEARSZM reference fo the above movements in the Company’s issued share capital
2 is as follows:
EEBT R EER
RIDEE Share
Numberof B &#{THRA premium st
sharesinissue  Issued capital account Total
TET TET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZEMFMNA—A AT April 2004 750,165,903 75,016 510,157 585,173
REER-_TZT_F Share opfions exercised
NAZ+HNB&IE under the old share
ZERREEE option scheme terminated
TRz ERE () on 28 August 2002 (a) 1,800,000 180 180 360
RERABRET S Share opfions exercised
BTt 2 BRE (D) under the exisfing share
option scheme (b) 13,000,000 1,300 650 1,950

R-ZZERFE=A=+—H At 31 March 2005

RZZEZRFNA—-H and 1 April 2005 764,965,903 76,496 510,987 587,483
RERABRET S Share opfions exercised

BT ZERED) under the exisfing share

option scheme (b 72,500,000 7,250 7,450 14,700
R-ZBZERF=ZA=1-H At 31 March 2006 837,465,903 83,746 518,437 602,183
BIRE Share options
ARARREBRESE 2HBERRE Details of the Company’s existing share option scheme and the share
AT 2 AR E N B IS R M AT options issued under the scheme are included in note 31 to the financial
31 statements.
2005/2006 “F#k
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1. BB

ARABE T — @B RET S (5
8 REKERNEERLRERZ
AERSEERHRBROR - %3
S ABER2EERRARFAES (B
RBEUFNTES) RASEEME

=
=
=

BRIEFREZERKE 2 BARITE
BRERSHE  AXTEBBAA
B EERE ETRMD210% °
RARZHEBEWT

B &

Purpose

W
p i

%

Participants

AFETCERBREBENFRER
AEEEBITRAZBD L

Total number of ordinary shares available
for issue and the percentage of the issued
share capital that it represents as at the
date of the annual report

BER2EEZESRE
Maximum entiflement of each participant

BEREREVEREES 2HR
Period within which the securities must be
taken up under an option

RITERT VAR A BIRE 2 SRR
Minimum period for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised

PR A0 B R A5 5R08
Amount payable on acceptance

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company currently operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
parficipants who confribute fo the success of the Group's operations.
Eligible participants of the Scheme include the Company's directors,
including independent non-executive directors, and other employees of
the Group.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently permitted fo
be granted under the Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue af any fime.

A summary of the Scheme of the Company is as follows:

RBBEERZEENERALRR ARRELZFERR - RRER
ENEEELBNREBMERZ ARG EBER -

To encourage eligible participants to perform their best in achieving the
goals of the Company while af the same time allow them to share the
fruits of the Company's business achieved through their effort and
confribution.

ARBFHAEMMBRAIZITBAR  EEXES (ARNTES
RIERITER) -

Executives or employees or directors [including both executive directors
and non-executive directors) of the Company or any of ifs subsidiaries.

75,196,690 & il X B # 1T 28.98%
75,196,590 ordinary shares and 8.98% of the issued share capital.

TEEBNER2ERBMEARRIEBEITREAZ1%
Shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company in any
12-month period.

MEFETRMEFRARA - EREABER T NERR L BRE
ERRTERN  EXBBRALLEZEXRR -

Defermined and nofified by the directors to each grantee, but shall end in
any event not later than 10 years from the date of the grant of options
subject to the provisions for early termination thereof.

MEFETRINABAEOL MG S -
To be defermined by the directors and included in the relevant offer
letters.

ﬁ o
Nil.
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ARBZFEBBNOT - (8)
BETEECAE

Basis for defermining the exercise price

BB T FH

The remaining life of the Scheme

BACET BETHEARBURE IR
BRAE LIREZEM -

ATREARBERRITEZBR
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)
A summary of the Scheme of the Company is as follows: (Cont'd)

REFET  BLEARUTRSZENROZEE @ (IRNEFRLE
BEER (WRREERR)  EBMERRABEBRZIHE
RUNEERROBREDHADEESER - TARNBR A HREK
PRz P (E -

Determined by the directors but must be the highest of (i) the nominal
value of shares; [ii) the closing price of the ordinary shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheet on the date of offer the share
of options, which must be a business day; and (iii] the average closing
price of the ordinary shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant of opfions.

FEBREN BEE_T—_F/N\A-T+tB-
The Scheme remains in force until 27 August 2012.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote
at shareholders” meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme during

1 the year:
ARAKD
LB
BREYA Price of he
Number of share opfions Compony's shares* **
BRE  NBRE  RERE
i@~ RLEH  AEAS
g Bl RIZERE Exercise Atgiant Afexercise
mA-A Bfiff =ZA=1-8 price of date of date of
A Brercised A RHERERS  BRETRHER  shoeopionst*  oplions options
paELY I Aprl duing 31 March Date of grantof ~ Exercise period BT BT BT
Name of parficipant 2005 the year 2006 share opfions ~~ of share opfions HKS HK$ HK$
AREZEE:
Directors of he Company:
RRERE 37,500,000 (37,500,000 - —ZEME —ZEME 0.252 0.240 0.350
Mr. Francis Cheung =AZt7A =A=t7A
26 March 2004 EIEENE
=R=1-H
26 March 200410
31 March 2009
BHERE 10,000,000 (10,000,000} - TR e 3 0.150 0.142 0.350
M. Fung Chi Chak, Victor =R=R* ZR=t/A
IMarch2003*  ZZEBERE
=A=t-H
28 March 2003 fo
31 March 2006
2005/2006 “F#k
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31.

BRETE (&) 31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)

ARAZFEBENT : (8) A summary of the Scheme of the Company is as follows: (Cont'd)

NTREFARBTERRITECER The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme during

(B the year: (Cont'd)

KRR
P
BREYA Price of he
Number of share options Company's shares™**
BRE  BRE  RERE
k@ RHEH  REH
R-FTRE R WZBEAE Bercise Agrant  Atexercise
mA-A 2% =ZB=t-8 price of date of date of
A Brerised A REBRERY  BRETESHR shoeopions™t  opfions opfions

BEELE I Aprl duing 31 March Date of grantof ~ Exercise period AT AT AT

Name of parficipant 2005 the year 2006 share opfions ~~ of share opfions HKS HK$ HK$

e N 12,000,000 (12,000,000 - Z3%-F “33-F 0.150 0.142 0.350

Miss Jennifer Kwok =R=H* ZAZTAR

3 March 2003* E2ZERE
=R=t-H
28 March 2003 fo
31 March 2006
BRELE 5,000,000 (5,000,000} - Z3%-F “3Z-F 0.150 0.142 0.350
Mr. Chiu Chin Hung =A=A* ZAZTNR
3 March 2003* E2EERE
=R=t-H
28 March 2003 fo
31 March 2006
BHEE 8,000,000 (8,000,000 - Z3%-F “33-F 0.150 0.142 0.350
Mr. Wong Kay =A=A* ZRA=t+N\A
3 March 2003* E2ZERE
=R=t-H
28 March 2003 fo
31 March 2006
72,500,000 72,500,000] -

* GREARABRLEREEBREZZT *  Each grantee was allowed to exercise up to 30% of the share options granted
ZME=ZA=+—H(BFEZR) AT from the date of grant up to and including 31 March 2004. Thereafter, the
EEE30% . EEEME - HiZ - B percentage of the share options which may be exercised by each grantee was
—EENFNA-HEZETREF= increased fo 60% for the period from 1 April 2004 up o and including 31 March
A=+—R(8FEZA) BH  84% 2005, and further to 100% for the period from 1 April 2005 up to and including
BRAFATEZBRERALENE 31 March 2006.

60%  ME-EERFMA—-—HZEZ
ZZRF=ZR=+—H(BEZA)H
fR Al — FHEE100%

** EREZTEESHBRNAMREITH **  The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case of rights
RARRRAR 2 E AR E B T LA SH or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.
= .

R B R B P R B 2 AR AR
NERSEERLBRERRAN 2R
ZHEBR WM E - REBRET
BT EE 2 R AR M BT
Y PAEE S P U T B A A FT (R P R BB
MR RE 2 g TR -

The price of the Company's shares disclosed as at the date of the grant of the
share options is the Stock Exchange closing price on the frading day immediately
prior fo the date of the grant of the options. The price of the Company's shares
disclosed as at the date of the exercise of the share options is the weighted
average of the Stock Exchange closing prices over all of the exercises of options
within the disclosure line.
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(a)

(b)

kS (a)

REFERBEFEAEEFAE
SHEREEHRUHREEIBAE
ZEERSEHRET

BREFINGELEZEBENR
B RSB B 2 M B
DREZEMNHNEERERTE®
R AEE B -

A 5 4t e R
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 March 2006 —EZXRF=A=+—8H

32. RESERVES

Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 33 of the financial
sfatements.

Pursuant fo the relevant laws and regulations for Sinoforeign joint
venture enterprises, a portion of the profits of the Group's
subsidiaries which are registered in the PRC has been transferred to
statutory reserves which are resfricted as fo use.

ATl (b} Company
IR 1% 8 Bk
Share BB RE &R F
premium  Contributed Retained B3
account surplus profits Total
ftaE THET THET THET TET
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
N _ETWF At 1 April 2004
@ﬁ H 510,157 29,950 33,098 573,205
BITRD Issue of shares 30 830 — — 830
AEFFEE  Netlossfor the year — — (1,994) (1,994)
RZZEZERF At 31 March 2005 and
=H=+—H 1 April 2005
R_ZFETRF
mA—H 510,987 29,950 31,104 572,041
BTl Issue of shares 30 7,450 — — 7,450
REFFEE  Netloss for the year — — (2,356) (2,356)
RZZZXRF  A31 March 2006
=A=+—H 518,437 29,950 28,748 577,135
RRRHABBRIENRER A RN The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of the fair
LR BBER-ANA—F2& value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group
BEAMBAZHB ARG A reorganisation in 1991 prior fo the listing of the Company’s shares, over
TE BREXRBEETRG the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor.
ZEHEZHE -RBRE-NAN—F Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, the Company may make
BRERRE EETHERT distributions to its members out of the contributed surplus under certain
ARAABMARSD IR TR circumstances.
® o
2005/2006 “F#k
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31 March 2006 ZZEEXRF=A=+—H

33. MEMOVLTH 33. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(a) TERHAEA (a) As lessor
AEBERBEEROZH - LA The Group leases its investment properties [note 14) and certain
REPN T —ZRF > HHER machinery under operating lease arrangements, with leases
BWE (Ma14) R THeE - negotiated for terms ranging from one fo six years. The terms of the
NEF—RTBREPREFPX leases generally also require the tenants and customers to pay
AR & RIZE R E BIE security deposits and provide for periodic rental adjustments
HE e FHE - according fo the then prevailing market conditions.
REER  REBRBEBFR At the balance sheet date, the Group had fotal future minimum
BEPAIL 2 AL eRORN lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with its
WTFHz ARZERKHEEE tenants and customers falling due as follows:
BT
£H
GROUP
—EERX —TTRF
2006 2005
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$'000
—F R Within one year 64,721 60,832
F_EFLF In the second to fifth years,
(PREEME) inclusive 23,175 19,479
87,896 80,311
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1 March 2006 —EZXF=A=+—H
KEHNTH (&) 33. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (Cont'd)
(b) 1ERRAMEA (b) As lessee
AEBERBEEROZH - LA The Group leases certain of its office properties, warehouses and
REPNFRERTEA - & staff quarters under operating lease arrangements, with leases
ETHAENE BEREREIR negotiated for terms ranging from six to sixty months.
% o
REEH - NEERE R/ At the balance sheet date, the Group had total future minimum
REHORUTFHZAKKE lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due
MAORNF@ENAT as follows:
£H
GROUP
—E2ERF —TThHF
2006 2005
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$'000
—FR Within one year 13,938 9,911
E_EFELF In the second to fifth years,
(BREEMT) inclusive 11,773 5,502
25,711 15,413
ARBREERTEEMLERNE The Company did not have any operating lease arrangements at the
(2T RF - E) o balance sheet date {2005: Nil).
2005/2006 “F#k
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4, EIE

BR b STHY R 33(b)aF il 2 45 & M 4 4
O REER  AEERBREMER
R BHREAELBEZEERK
BERFAZWT :

B BRI
BRI - EREEE

AN AEBERERETRYECBTY
BEREBEBEZAENR _ZE F=A
=+—H A254,477,0007% 7T °

REER - KA R E TR E R RE
(ZZEZTRF  E) o

34. COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 33(b)
above, the Group had the following authorised future capital expenditure
for investment properties which had not been provided for in the financial
statements at the balance sheet date:

&8

GROUP
—EERE —EERF
2006 2005
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
Authorised, but not contracted for 17,452 —
Contracted, but not provided for 15,924 44,960
33,376 44,960

In addition, the Group had contracted but not provided for commitments
in respect of construction works relating o properties under development

amounting to HK$254,477,000 as at 31 March 2006.

The Company had no significant commitments at the balance sheet date

(2005: Nil).

2005/2006 Annual Report
TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED




36. FAEE

(a)

(b)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2006 —ZEEXRF=ZR=+—H

35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)  Atthe balance sheet date, contingent liabilities not provided for in

BEZIREBENT : the financial statements were as follows:
£8 DA
GROUP COMPANY
ZE2E2RE _—TTHF ZBEARF _—TThHF
2006 2005 2006 2005
FET FAET FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
S Guarantees given fo financial
) BT 8 A m L institutions in connection with
—REEEX general credit facilities and
KRERNER finance lease facilities granfed
s T 2 R to subsidiaries — — 507,859 450,767
LEXRE & Guarantees in respect of
e H 2 R performance bonds 76,492 41,306 76,492 41,306
76,492 41,306 584,351 492,073

REBFEEBEKD  KEEHA
‘AT NEEZRARB S 2
FAREE RZEERFZRA=
+—H &= [ 82 5UE 43,094,000
BIL(ZZEZRF 5,319,000
7T) - ERMBmENE25/ES
BHE—TEE - ZHXREBEZ
EETHERREER BETHA
EERASE - REFTHEES
AEBKOIFMATE 2FH  HiE
ERETEAEBE TG4
RERERARBE S - BRR A
BAEBE s ERABRAERLEZ
AREERK - ARARFEZEN
BE S R -

(b)

The Group had a contingent liability in respect of possible future long
service payments fo its employees under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance, with a maximum possible amount of HK$ 3,094,000 as at
31 March 2006 {2005: HK$5,319,000, as further explained under
the heading "Employee benefits” in note 2.5 to the financial statements.
The contingent liability has arisen because, at the balance sheet date, a
number of current employees have achieved the required number of
years of service to the Group in order to be eligible for long service
payments under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance if their
employment is terminated under certain circumstances. A provision has
not been recognised in respect of such possible payments, as it is not
considered probable that the situation will result in a material future
outflow of resources from the Group.
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36. BEALTRS

BRUMBREMREEIN  ARERF
AME TIIBEEALRS

@ EEEALZREEERT
WEHE  FEEZBEARR
B2 HERRYBREM T8 -

b) AEBFEFEBEABEZ2H®HMM
o

BB RN
Em &R

ENTEREEABZ
W R

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group also

had the following related party transactions during the year:

(al

(b)

Outstanding balance with a related party:

Details of the Group’s amount due from its associate as at the

balance sheet date are included in note 18 to the financial

statements.

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

&8
GROUP

ZERRE _—TTRHH

2006 2005

FET TET

HK$'000 HK$'000

Short term employee benefits 16,301 15,418

Postemployment benefits 120 108
Total compensation paid fo key

management personnel 16,421 15,526
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REBZFESRTIERRERS R
T#EF - BWRE SRR H UK
B EBNE SRR E MR RIEN
RFTEE - ZEeMIAZFER
MBREEBMTARE - HZEe
MIARBRER R REZER
B BREINNT - EREEERE
REZERRE - AHERERRBBHEK
HUEE 1B 56 o

=EmEE

$§IZIEA@§§7%EE’£&§E??
BF  AREWE SRR REMER

ME

mMREREER S 2 RITHAFER
FENEBERTZREENE &
RITBEGEZEERRTK -

AEEEERRIERBERRE
SEFREMERKTR - EEENS
HERENESREMNESER AR
ME8E  BRERTAREE ﬁ%ﬁ
RAZBERBE - BRUME - A2

EXEARAKEZEER Eﬁ%ﬂ

9\

AEBYEERBRBEES 2
R FEHZARSRESBARSY
FREF -

}Efﬂlbiij%@/ﬁ’%

AKEFEHZFZEHEBKRERK
BEMSRITEE - TERRERE
$§.Eﬁﬁim§ﬂrﬂm°$§
B 35 B 3 A {7 B K B0 R

m EIEEE%%ZS%IE$TZ$‘J$H
@ WA T ERE B pE
ZERNEER -
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31 March 2006 —ZEEXRF=ZR=+—H

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES

The Group's major financial instruments include cash and bank balances,
frade and other receivables, trade and other payables and bank
borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective nofes fo these financial statements. The risk associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. Management manages and monitors these exposures
fo ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Credit risk

The Group's principal financial assets are cash and bank balances, trade
and other receivables.

The credit risk on bank balances is limited because the counterparties are
banks with high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

The Group's credit risk is primarily atfributable to its trade and other
receivables. Management reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual frade debt af each balance sheet date to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with the
exposure spreading over a large number of counterparties and
customers.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to changes in interest rates is mainly aftributable to
its inferest-bearing bank borrowings. Borrowings at variable rafes expose
the Group to cash flow interest rafe risk. The Group currently does not
have an inferest rate hedging policy. However, management monitors the
Group's inferest rate exposure and will consider hedging significant
interest rafe exposure should the need arise.
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BHREABREEERRBE (&)

SME =R Bz

AEEIEREFERTEAME RS
B ERBOIXZHUETRARE
BE BNFRBARSEXINER
@ o AN AR HIBKINE AT B
o B BT A AR A 2 SME B IR B U
AR -

EEERBERASEMEYEZER
B - THRBEBERILEMN

BB E R

AEBZEEREBNMARITEE
SEEDMEcHBEEFHE 2 ARF T
& AEETHRTEFEESM
N ERERHUBERENE TS
HAHE o

tHEERETBEREZ A FE

EZRA NEREERGBRAWS
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EBZRFERE -

EERHF

AN SRR M T2 2 2. 4F 1 — 58
i HREAFEERRRITREE
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SRR 2%
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HERRETERBERE -

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

38.

39.

POLICIES (Contd)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong and Mainland China with
most of its transactions seftled in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi and
therefore did not have significant exposure fo foreign exchange risk during
the year. In addition, the conversion of Renminbi into foreign currencies is
subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.

Management monitors the Group's currency exposure on an ongoing
basis and will enfer into hedges when the need arises.

Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of
funding and flexibility through the use of bank borrowings. The Group
regularly reviews its major funding positions to ensure that it has
adequate financial resources in meeting its financial obligations.

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of the financial assefs
and financial liabilities reported in the consolidated balance sheet
approximate fo their respective fair values.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

As further explained in notes 2.2 and 2.4 to the financial statements, due
to the adoption of new and revised HKFRSs during the current year, the
accounting freatment and presentation of certain items and balances in
the financial statements have been revised to comply with the new
requirements. Accordingly, certain prior year and opening balance
adjustments have been made and cerfain comparative amounts have
been reclassified and restated to conform with the current year's
presentation and accounting freatment.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the

board of directors on 28 July 2006.
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